GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of GMR Highways Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Highways
Limited(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2024, the Statement of Prolit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year thfen
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as
“Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2024 give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2024, its loss,total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind As financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rulesmade
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. ;

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying
Standalone IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

A. We draw the attention to Note no 36 of the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to the invc?mg@'in- 3
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76 Crores (including investment in equity/ preference shaxjes of
(l;rsl.zlséfjgz Crores) rn(ade by the company in GMR Ambala Chandigarh
Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL) a subsidiary of the' company.
Though GACEPL has been incurring losses, and the networtl.l is negative,
based on the management’s assessment and the legal opinion on t_he
tenability of appeal before Hon’ble Supreme Court, in respect of claim
before NHAI, Government of Haryana and Punjab for loss of revenue, such
investment has been carried at cost. Our opinion in this regard is not
qualified.

B. We draw your attention to Note no.37of the accompanying ﬁnanc‘:lal
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, regarding the carrying
value of investment of Rs.650.37 crores in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada
Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL). Though thc liabilities of GHVEPL
exceeds the total assets of the company, and has been incurring losses
since its inception, based on the management’s valuation assessment and
the legal opinion on the compensation from proceedings initiated by the
company against NHAI for loss of revenue, before Delhi High Court, such
investments have been carried at cost. Our opinion is this regard is not
qualified.

C. We draw your attention to Note no.37of the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to uncertainty in
the matter of restriction of concessionaire period of GHVEPL by NHAI to
15 years as against the initially envisaged period ol 25 years, which the
subsidiary is contesting before arbitration tribunal and based on
independent legal opinion is confident on getting reliel. However, the
financials of the subsidiary does not carry any adjustments in the
financial statements on account of the above. In line with the same view,
the company has not made any adjustments to the carrying of
investments in the financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The C.ompany’ls Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the board report, but does
not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report

tht;re()n. The board report is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

Our oginion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge

obtained during the course ol our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financialstatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income / loss, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordancewith the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

Thisresponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardingof the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenanceol adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are [reelrom material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management and Board

of Directors, cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s [inancial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements, as a whole are ree from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and 10 issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Saswill always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise {rom fraud or error an
are consideredmaterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasom@bls
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be cxpected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to [raudor error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting fromfraud ishigher than
for one resulting from error, as [raud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrcpresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures thatare appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing ouropinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operatingelfectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relateddisclosures made by
managemendt.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis ol accounting and, based on theaudit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may castsignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaintyexists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone [inancialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the auditevidence
obtained up (o the date ol our auditor’s report. However, [uture events or
conditions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in amanner that achieves [air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit
findings, including any signilicant deficiencies in internal control that w
identify duringour audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that mayreasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report
that:

a)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary [or the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears [rom our examination of
those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS [inancial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as
on March 31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 [rom being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this

report.
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g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its managerial
personnel during the year and accordingly reporting in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act is not required,;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations other than as
disclosed in note no. 33 which would impact its [inancial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be translerred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. A. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no [unds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behall of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

B. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”

_

4502, High point IV, 45, Palace Road. Bangalore-510 001, Ph: 223 81 473 / 9845 :



GIRISH

MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

vi.

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Benelficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

During the year, the Company, neither declared nor paid any
dividend. Hence reporting on compliance with provisions of section
123 of the Act does not arise.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of

_account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a

feature of rccording audit trail {cdit log) famhly and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable [rom April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is
not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number:-0009343
S

2. Palace Road,
Bangalore-1

A.V Satish Kumar 2
Partner 2 oo
Membership number: 026526
UDIN: 24026526BKFIECC4028

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30" April2024
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» Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report referred to in clause 1
of paragraph on the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024

Re: GMR Highways Limited

I. In respect of the Company’s Tangible assets & Intangible asscts:

i.  The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant &
equipment and there are no intangible assets held by the company
during the ycar.

ii. The Company has a program of verilication to cover all the items of
Property, plant & equipmentin a phased manncr over a period of three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the sizc of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the
Company has carried out physical verification during the Current year
and no major discrepancies have been noticed during such verification.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (including
investment properties) held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is a lessee) disclesed in the [inancial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

iv.  There is no revaluation done by the company of its propertly, plant and
equipment (including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

v. There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder,

II. In respect of details of Company’s Inventory & Working capital:

i. The nature of company’s operation does not warrant holding of any
stocks. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.,

ii. The company, during any poeint of time of the year, has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets.
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or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as mentioned in notes to
accounts note number 6, 7 and 8. The details of the same are given below:

Rs. In Crores

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate 276.94

amount  given
during the year

Balance 55.50 762.34
outstanding as
at balance sheet
date

Note :Loan outstanding as at balance sheet date not include Equity
Component of Loan given.

b. The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans and guarantees provided are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the

Company’s interest.

c. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal
and interest are regular wherever applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or
advances in the nature ol loans granted to such companies, firms,

LLPs or other parties.

e. The Company has granted loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s)
which had fallen due during the year and such loans or advances in
the nature of loans werc renewed/extended during the year. The
details of the same has been given below:
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[Name of the Borrower

Aggregate
amount of
existing loans
renewed - INR in

Percentage to
the total loans
granted during
the

1

Expressways Pvt Ltd

crores year(Including
the renewed
loans-%
14.36 3.91%

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(EPC)
GIL-SIL-JV 0.28 0.08%
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada 75.99 20.67%

f. During the year, the Company has not granted loans, which are

repayable on demand.

g. There are no loans wherein the terms or period of repayment were not

specified .

IV.In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us

made any investments, gave any
tion with a loan to any other body
corporate or person in contravention of section 185 and 186 of the

the company has not granted any loan,
guarantee or provided security in connec

Companies Act,2013.

V. According to the information and explana
not accepted any deposits or amounts whi
the meaning of Sectio

the public within
Companies
the provisions ol clause

VL

tion given to us the Company has
ch are deemed to be deposits from
ns 73 to 76 of the Act and the
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company,

pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government of [ndia, the maintenance
of cost records as prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

VII. In respect of Deposit of Statutory liabilities:

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations

given

statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax,

to us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed

sales-

tax, scervice tax, duty of customs, duty ol excise, value added tax, cess

and other material statutory dues, as

applicable, with the appropriate

mrr\_
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authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereol were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months [rom the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no statutory dues relerred to in subclause (a) above that have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

VIIIL. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records

of

the company examined by us we have not come across any instances of

any transactions which are not recorded in the accounts that have been
disclosed or surrendered before the tax authorities as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961.

IX.a.
explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that, the
company has not delayed in the repayment of loans taken from lender &
interest thereol during the year,

X.

a)
b)
c)

d)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and

The company has not taken any loan from Government and the company
has not issued any debentures.

The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, money is not raised by way of term loans during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not
been utilised for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any [unds [rom any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associale companies.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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any preferential allotment or private placement of shares. However,
the Company has issuedfully, or optionally) convertible debentures
during the year on private placement basis and the issue is in
compliance withthe Section 42 and 62 of Companies Act, 2013. The
funds raised on such issue have been utilized for the purpose for
which the funds were raised.

Xl.a. During the course ol examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have not come across any instance of fraud by the company or on
the company by its officers or employees of the company during the year.
Further there were no whistle blower complaints received during the year.

b. No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and Explanations given
to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii)
of the order i1s not applicable.

XIII. According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
noles to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

XIV. The company has an adequate internal audit system to commensurate
with the size and nature of its business and the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were considered.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 of the order is not
applicable.

XVI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions
of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to
the Company.

XVII. The company has incurred any cash losses of Rs, 155.74Crs in the
financial year and of Rs. 206.86 Cr in the immediately preceding financial
year,

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company. A rxmy‘f@
&7 &
{f HighPnt 1y

%o
(35, Palace Road. ) o8
4502, High point IV, 45, Palace Road. Bangalore-510 001, Ph: 223 81 473 / 984 i

AT



GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the

basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of [inancial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge ol the
plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the opinion that
no material uncertainty cxists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year [rom the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We [urther state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

XX.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1)
of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The company does not have any unspent amount with respect to the
- obligations under Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the
company is not liable to transfer any amount neither to the Fund
specified under Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 nor to the
Special Account according to the provisions of Section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013,

XXI. The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of

standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment
has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 0009348

ke

A.V Satish Kumar \ 2\ Bangalare-1
Partner \(,}fﬂ 5
Membership number: 0265
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a.‘l 45, Palace Road, af

IN: 24026526BKIFIECC4028

ce: Bangalore

Date: 30-04-2024
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i)
of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR
Highways Limited(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone [inancial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companics Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is Lo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over [inancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ol Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over [inancial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over [inancial reporting and
their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting,
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GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over linancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance ol records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurcs of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material elfect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over [inancial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or [raud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over f[inancial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration numbcr 0009348
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A.V Satish Kumar ‘\H /
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
Note As At ASAT
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3.54 5.97
(b) Investment property 5 1,605.74 1,605.74
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 - <
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 160,776.80 140,828.50
(i) Loans 7 (i) 50,101.55 52,091.47
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 (i) 29,809.60 26,966.52
() Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 611.34 789.95
(f) Other Non Current Assets 13 (i) 172.39 134.43
Total Non-Current Assets 243,080.96 222,422.58
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Current Investments 6 (i) - -
(ii) Loans 7 (i) 26,132.39 10,368.65
(iii) Trade Receivables 9 920.03 2,126.88
(iv) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (i) 58.92 30,133.79
(v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenty 10 (i) 1.83 1.71
(vi) Other Financial Assets 8 (ii) 3,406.72 14,287.81
(b) Other Current Assets 13 (ii) 598.07 443.94
Total Current Assets 31,117.96 57,362.78
TOTAL ASSETS 274,198.92 279,785.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 84,333.47 84,333.47
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 2,576.00 -
(c) Other Equity 15 40,188.67 48,436.94
Total Equity 127,098.14 132,770.41
Liabilities
Non-Current Liablities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 103,015.43 96,673.45
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 (i) 3,509.37 36.18
(b) Provisions 20 (i) . ¥
(c) Deferred Tax Liablities (Net) 12 - 5
Total Non-Current Liablities 106,524.80 96,709.63

45, Palace Road,
Bangalore-4
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Cash Elow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
profit / {Loss) for the period (8,246.98) {13,243.87)
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation 243 2.69
Finance Charges 17,109.18 15,282.38
Loss / (Gain) on disposal of assets (net) 0.00 {50.16)
Exceptional items - 10,083 .67
Interest Income on Financial Assets (7,158.19) (7,905.93)
\nterest Income on Bank deposit and others (1,749.46) (3,820.58)
Provisions/Liability no longer required written back (207.01) (168.34)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (1.28) {2.21)
Profit on sale of Investment {0.47) (0.26)
(251.78) 177.38
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in Financial Assets and other non Current Assets (2,203.10) (8,040.24)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories, Financial Assets and other Current Assets (154.13) 359.28
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables 1,206.85 693.96
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (1,523.45) {171.41)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Finance Liablities (57.71) (621.40)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision {492.55) 1,058.11
Increase / {Decrease) in Other Current Liablities {(54.11) 2,752.62
Cash From/{Used In) Operating activities (3,529.99} {3,791.69)
Tax (Paid)/Refund 178.61 506.65
Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating activities (3,351.38) (3,285.04)
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Addition) / Deletion to Fixed Assets (0.00) 54.82
Interest Income on Bank deposit and others , 1,089.42 1,801.94
Decrease/(Increase) in Loan to related parties (15,700.74) 16,041.62
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Bank Balance (0.12) {0.08)
profit on Sale of Investment 047 0.26
Cash From/{Used In) Investing Activities (14,610.96) 17,898.57
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase/(Decrease) in CCDs Issued to related parties 2,576.00 -
Increase/(Decrease) in NCDs Issued to External parties 70,000.00 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from external parties (75,536.71) {9,874.24)
Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from Group Companies (Net) 1,642.55 40,860.66
Interest paid on Loan (10,780.14) (15,543.39)r
Other Finance Charges Paid (14.23) {6.64)
Cash From/{Used In) Financing Activities {12,112.52) 15,436.37
Net Increase /Decrese In Cash and Cash Equivalents {30,074.87) 30,049.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the Year 30,133.79 83.88
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year 58.92 30,133.79
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GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: UdSlO!MHZOOGPLCZS?l?lI

Notes forming part of Financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

€)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices In active markets for ldentical assets or liabllities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that |s significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financlal statements on a recurring basis, the Company's determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest fevel
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by

transferring promised good or service to a customer. The revenue is recognised to the extent of transaction price 2llocated
to the performance obligation satisfied. Performance obligation Is satisfied over time when the

transfer of control of asset (good or service) to a customer is done over time and in other cases, performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time. For performance obligation catisfled over time, the revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a
proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Variable
consideration is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount as appropriatein a given
circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice and there is no financing
component involved in the transaction price.

interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or 10 the amortised cost of a financial
lizbility. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at acqulsition cost less accumulated depreclation and cumulative impairment.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Recognition:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(2) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the

“"_‘ﬁ"i amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use Is included in the cost of the
respective asset If the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note xx and xx regarding significant accounting

judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further Information about the recorded decommissioning
provision.




GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment assets are measured as the difference

between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection {as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of property, plant and equipment and whose use is expected to be
irregular are capitalized as property, plant and equipment.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of
residual value, in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as

below:

- Plant and equipments 4-15 years
- Office equipments 5 years

- Furniture and fixtures 10 years

- Vehicles 8-10 years
- Computers 3 years

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on
assets sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is
depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life ofthat asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f)  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
an amalgamation in the nature of purchase Is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The

amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

h)

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be pald to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabllities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in
0Ci or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (a nd tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
apainst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Borrowing costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of anclliary costs incurred In connection with the arrangement of
borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributa ble to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessa rily

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for Its Intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expen sed In the period they occur.

Inventories
Raw materials, components,
basis.

Net reatizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First in First Out

Lease
Finance Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.- Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized.d on an accrual basis as per the terms of agreements entered into with lessees.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee

Lease rentals are recognized as an expenses on a straight line basis w
except where-

(i) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern o
on lease.; or

(ii) The payments to the lessor are structured to Increase
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases

ith reference to lease terms and other considerations
f the benefit derived from the asset taken or given

in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the

Lands obtained on leases, where there Is no reasonable certainity that the Company will obtain ownershp by the end of

the lease term shall generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease pyayments include upfront premium paid
plus any annual recurring lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.

1,

45, Palace Road, )
|




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

m)

Impairment

1’h.=.-p Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an Indlcation that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impalrment testing for an asset Is required, the company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s orcashgenerating units’ (CGUs) net selling
price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered Impaired and s written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if avallable. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model |s used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detalled budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the company's cash generating unlts to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a perlod of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously
revalued property, plant and equipment, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the
impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no ionger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversai
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of prefit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revaiued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets And Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because It is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises In extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent llability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. Contingent assets are only only disclosed when it s proable that the economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company's has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is materlal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabllity. When discounting Is used, the Increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

n)

o)

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans,

All employee benefits payable/avallable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund Is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident f und scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. if the contribution already pald exceeds the contribution due forsservices received before the balance sheet

date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accurnulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay asa
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reparting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the Jeave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non—current liability.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow . of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the
discount rate determined by reference to market ‘ yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
% The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabllity or asset.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
phofit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.




GMR Highways Limited
[CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financlal assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost ;

A ‘debt instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost If both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are su bsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This categery generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

P The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the

company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvermnent. In that case,

the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a

basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not mea sured as at FVTPL

4 .
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GMR Highways Limited
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

[
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GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

p)

q)

*
2
=

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL Is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.
Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR

method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitles are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits recieved.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with
an original maturity periods of three months or less.

Earning per share

Basic Earnings Per Share Is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the perlod.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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GMR Highways Umited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs

S Investment property Amount
land
As At March 31, 2023 1,605.74
Additions =
Disposals .
As At March 31, 2024 1,605.74

Note:- 1) Company is having original tital deeds in its name. Investment property represents in Land as follows:-

As At As At
Land Detail March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Situated at Ambala Chandigarh Road, Dist - Ambala (58628.83 5q Mtr) 1,605.74 1,605.74

award from NHAI in GTT case

The original title deads of the property has been offered as security with the Registry of the Court for getting claim

Rupees in Lacs
As At As At
Non current investments
. March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
Investment in Equities Shares 20,437.81 20,437.81
Equity part of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 46,914.05
Equity part of Investment in CCDs 57,181.40 36,060.00
Equity portion of related party loans 36,164.15 37,337.25
Investment in financial guarantees 79.39 79.39
160,776.80 140,828.50
As At As At
Breakup of Investment in Equities at Cost March 31,2024 March 31,2023
{2) Investment in subsidiaries
(i} 13.5%.30,000 (March 31, 2023: 13,59,30,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each in 13,593.00 13,593.00
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
() 5,07,42,720 (March 31, 2023: 5,07,42,720) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each in GMR 5,074.27 5,074.27
Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
(ii) 24,50,000 (March 31, 2023: 24,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each In GMR 245.00 245.00
Hyderzbad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(iv) 1,47,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,47,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in GMR 1,470.00 1,470.00
Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited
{b) Other investment - Equity
{i} 5,55,270 (March 31, 2023: 5,55,370) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each in Indian 55.54 55.54
Highways Management Company Ltd.
Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81
Less: - impairment in Investment of Shares
impairment in investment * T
Net Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81

e,
High! Point 1V
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Equity Comp t Pref Shares - Party wise ___Pref Share
[GHvEPL 16,249.31 |
[scorr 6,011.67
GacEp. ————— 463060
Equity Component of GACEPL Pref share trf from GTT GTA _5,915'.4_ 7
46,914.05
Equity Component CCDs- Party wise o
GSPHL 12,600.00 |
GKSIR 23,460.00
GACEPL 21,12140 |
57,181.40
Equity Comp t Loan - Party wise
GHVERL 29,255.49
GCORR 547.57
GACEPL 4,468.51 |
GKSIR 1,892.57
36,164.15
As At As At
610) Current Investments March 31,2024| March 31,2023
ment in Quoted mutual funds . -
Rupees in Lacs
As At As At
7 Losss [usecared, considersd good) March 31,2024] March 31,2023
(i) Non Current
{2) Loans and advance to related parties
Loan to body corporate 4,741.95 4,432,00
Loan to related party 45,355.60 47,655.47
50,101.55 52,0947
[ii) Current
Loan Receivables considered good - UnSecured
{2) Loans to related parties 26,132.39 10,368.65
(b) Loan to employees - -
26,132.39 10,368.65
Loan to related parties / others considered good include ;
| _t0Non Current Rupees in Lacs
GHVEPL 39,023.33 35,247.20
GACEPL 6,163.38 12,176.38 |
|GIL-SILIV - 63.00
[Namitha Real Estates Private Limited 172.89 172.89
[ugPL (Others) 4,741.95 4,432.00
{ 50,0155 52,091.47
| ) Current
GPUIL Corporate 13,980.75 -
GPUIL EPC 2,834.65 1,519.65
oISty 1,718.00 50.00
GHVEPL 7,599.00 8,799.00
26,132.39 10,368.65
Loans st concessional rate of interest to Group companies are separated Into assets and equity components based on the terms of the contract, On receipt of the loan, the fair value of
the zssels comp isd ined using a market rate for an equivalent Instrument. This amount is classified as a financial assets measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs)
wntil it is extinguished. The inder of the p ds Is recognised and Included in retained earning,

45, Palace Road,
5\ Bangalore-1




GMR Highways Limited

CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal St ts for the Year ended March 31, 2024
As At As At
$ Other Financisl Assots March 31, zuul March 31, 2023
(i) Non Current
Interest acerued on Inter corporate loans and deposits 3,920.29 3,582.41
Einancial Asset of Invest. in preference shares Issued by related parties 25,089.31 23,384.11
29,809.60 26,966.52
[il} Current
Security Deposit - 2793
Non trade receivable- related party 87.29 10,153 69
Mon trade receivable considered good 18,696.23 18,696.23
Receivable Other than trede - considered good B.67 867
Unbilled revenue - related party 1,516.60 1,62553
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.02 23.03
Interest accrued others 1,156,856 591,61
Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans and deposits 613.48 433,55
22,079.15 32,960.24
Less- Provision for doubtful non trade receivable {18,672.43) (18,672 43
3,406.72 14,287.81

The Company had subscribed 1,45,00,040 8% redeemable non-cumulative non-canvertible preference shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid up in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressway
Private Limited. Preference Shares are redeemable at par on May 1,2022. However the company reserves the right to all for buy-out of the Preference shares by the promoters of the
{ssure Company of redemption of the preference shares by the lssuer company at any time after the expiry of € months from the date of allotment by giving one month notice.

As these Preference share are non cumulative and the Issuer Company Is not under obligation to pay dividend, only fair value of redemption value has been considered as financial
assets using a market rate for an equivalent instrument, This amount is classifled as a Investment measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on
3 ion. The rer der of the proceeds is recognised and included In Equity investment.

regemp

In April 2022, the terms associated with the existing preference shares has change to make them Compu Iserily Convertible into equity shares at ratio of 1:10 on or before August 31,
2027

Rupees in Lacs
As At
9 Pade Rachubies March n,;:::: March 31, @
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Receivables idered good - UnS ed 920.03 2,126.88
520.03 2,126.88
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
Asat 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periads from due date of payment Total
Current but not | Less than 6 & months - More than
due Months 1year 1-2years |2-3years |3 years
undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 17.15 456.76 269.37 17675 - 920.03
Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - " - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - =
Disputed Trade receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - . - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables —credit im paired - - = - - - =
Total - 17.15 456.76 269.37 176.75 - 920.03
As st 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Current but not | Lessthan 6 6 months - More than
due Months 1year 1-2years | 2-3years |3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered good - 1,361.02 318.20 447.66 - - 2,126.88
Undisputed Trade Receivabl — which have significant increase In credit risk - - = - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired . . - . - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - . - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables = which have significant Increase in credit risk - - - - - - =
Di Trade recelvables - credit impaired - - - - - . -
Total - 136102 | 31820 |  447.66 - - | 212688

{I} No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jolntly with any other persan.
{ii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Breakup of financial assets

As At As At
30 Cash sad cash equivalents March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
(i} Balances with banks
- In Current Account 58.92 133.79
- Deposits with less than three months maturity - 30,000.00
(i} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Margin money* 1.83 171
60.75 30,135.50
Rupees in Lacs
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At Cost
Investment in Equities 20,437.81 20,437.81
At amortised cost
Investment in Unquoted CCDs 57,181.40 36,060.00
Equity portion of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 46,914.05
Equity portion of related party loans 36,164.15 37,337.25
liInvestment in financial guarantees 79.39 79.38
Financial Asset of Invest. in preference shares issued by related parties 25,889.31 23,384.11
Lpans to Related parties 76,233.94 62,460.12
Cash & Cash Equivalent 60.75 30,135.50
Trade Receivables 920.03 2,126.88
Other Financial Assets 7.327.01 17,870.22
Total 271,207.84 276,805.34
Rupees in Lacs
11 Income Tax-Non Current s i
come Tax-Non Curren March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Advance income tax (net of provision for current tax) 611,34 789.95
611.34 789.95

Rupees in Lacs

As At As At|
12 Deferred Tax Assets/(Uablity) March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Total
Deferred Tax Uablities
Total m
Net Deferred Tax Assets/({Uablities) - &
As At As At
13 Other Curvant/bon Current Assats March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(i) Other Non Current Assets (Considered Good)
Balance with government authorities 30.80
Prepaid Expenses pertains to Gratuity 141,59 134.43
172.39 134.43
(ii) Other Current Assets (Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses 0.34 1.14
Advances recoverable In cash or kind 113.03 61.57
Balance with government authoritles 484.70 381.23
598.07 443.94

4
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
14 Share capital As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31
Authorised ’ 2
{i} 234,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 234,200.00 234,200.00
(March 31, 2023: 234,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) £
(i) 17,96,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 179,600.00 179,600.00
(March 31, 2023: 17,96,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 100 each) ’
413,800.00 413,800.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up A————————]
(i} 843,334,710 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 84,333.47 £4,333.47
{March 32, 2023: 843,334,710 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
84,333.47 84,333.47
NOTES :
{i) Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pay dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director is subject to the approval of

the shareholder in ensuing Annual General meeting.
In event of liquidation of the Company,

distribution of all prefrential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 1

Pursuant to Compaosite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon'ble Nati

Mumbai vide its order

the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
he number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

onal Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
dated August 03, 2022, the authorised share capital altered from Rs. 395000.00 lacs (divided into 23400 lacs Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1610 lacs preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/-
lacs Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1736 lacs Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/-
effective from 11.08.2022 with the Appointed Date i.e April 01, 2013,

each) to Rs. 413800.00 lacs (divided into 23420
each) on the date scheme become

(i) Reconcilation of the Equity shares outstanding at beginning and at end of the period
As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Rupees in Lacs Number Rupees in Lacs

Equity Shares
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 843,334,710 84,333.47 775,440,510 77,544.05
Capital Reduciton during the period - - - -
Shares Issued during the year - - 67,894,200 6,789.42

843,334,710 333.47 | 843,334,710 84,333.47
Shares outstanding at the end of the year % 84 4

Share Capital Issued

Pursuant to the sanctioned Composite Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation amongst GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited, GMR

Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited {Transferor Companies), GMR Highways Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders & Creditors sanctioned vide Order dated August 03, 2022 by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (NCLT),

allotment of 6,78,94,200 (Six Crore Seventy Eight Lakh Ninety Four Thousand Twe Hundred Only) equity shares of Rs.10/- each was made to
GMR Generations Assets Limited on September 0G, 2022.

Further, with effect from 24-03-2023, 67,894,200 equity shares held by GMR Generation Asset Limited

{GGAL) transferred to GMR Power and
Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL).

(iv) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
No of Share % No of Share %
Equity Shares
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 767,789,941 91.04% qmﬁ“m.ﬂmw onm”
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited 75,544,769 8.96% 75,544,

A
Hight Paint Iy

45, Palace Road,
Bangalore-1




{v) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates / Promoters

Out of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

their

Equity Shares

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

767,789,937 (March 31, 2023: 767,789,937) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

GMR Business Process and Services P Ltd representing and for the
benefit of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald up

GMR Corporate Affairs P Ltd representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Corporate Services Limited (formerly known as GMR
Aerostructures Services Limited) representing and for the benefit
of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Infra Developers Limited representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Mr. Kiran Kumar Grandhi representing and for the benefit of
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
75,544,768 (March 31, 2023: 75,544,768) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

As At
March 31, 2024
Number Rupees In Lacs

As At
March 31, 2023
Number Rupees in Lacs

767,789,937 76,778.99 | 767,789,937 76,778.99

75,544,768

7,554.48

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

75,544,768

7,554.48

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15 Other Equity

Rupees in Lacs

As At March 31, 2024

As At March 31, 2023

(i) |equity component of Preference shares

Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(i

Equity component of Loans from group companies
Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(ii) | Equity component of Cumpulsory Covertible Debentures
Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(iii){ surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year

(iti)| Other Comprehensive Income- Re-measurement {loss)/ galns en
defined benefit plans
Opening Balance

Add : During the year

16,968.23

19,179.49
(0.00)

e

2,576.00

12,218.69
(8,246.98)

70,53

{1.28)

- 16,968.23 -

19,179.49 4

397171

69.25 {2.21)

42,764.67

16,968.23

19,179.49

2,576.00 s

25,210.82
{12,992.13)

e —————

16,968.23

19,179.49

12,218.69




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs
As At As At
16 Long Term Borrowi
ong ngs March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Secured
Debentures (secured) 70,000.00 -
Term loans (Indian rupee term loan from bank) - 55,621.34
Unsecured
Loans from group company 33,015.43 41,052.11
103,015.43 96,673.45

(i}. The Company has issued 7,000 Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable & Non-Convertible Debentures with face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each of a total
value of Rs. 70000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: NIL) by way of private placement. The tenure of the debenture is 48 {Forty-Eight) months from the
Closing date. The Coupon/rate of interest is fixed @ 14 % per annum payable annually. The entire Debentures shall be paid in a single tranche at
end of 48 (forty-eight) months from the date of allotment of Debentures.

The Company shall create an exclusive charge on 100 % of the Equity Shares of GHL by way of Pledge. Corporate Guarantee by GMR Power & Urban
Infra Limited (Holding Company of GHL) to the tune of the transaction including interest accrued during the tenure of the agreement. The Company

shall create first ranking equal & proportionate charge in the nature of a hypothecation over all existing (including any future) receivables to be
created in favor of the of the debenture trustee.

(ii). Secured Indian rupee term loan from Yes bank of Rs. NIL {March 31, 2023: 62389.45 lacs) was secured by First charge over current assets and
movable fixed assets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x,
Pledge over 20% shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport
Limited {GAL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights to be pledged by GIL, Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR
Infrastrcuture Limited, and Margin of 6% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YBL). The margin
shall be lien marked/pledged to YBL prior to first disbursement.

The loan carries an interest rate 3.20% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly instaliments after the
moratorium period or 12 months.

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. The company has
prepaid the entire loan in February 2024 :

(iii). Secured Indian rupee term loan from Yes bank of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2023: 11192.41 lacs) was secured by First charge over current assets and
movable fixed assets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x,
Pledge over 20% shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 8% Shares of GEL along with all
beneficial/economic voting rights and NDU over 2% shares of GEL (Prior to Disbursment), Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport Limited (GAL)
along with all beneficial/economic voting rights (Prior to Disbursment) , Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR Infrastrcuture
Limited Margin of 19,14% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YEL). The margin shall be lien
marked/pledged to YBL prior to first disbursement.

The loan carries an inlerest rate 3.10% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly installments after the
moratorium period or 12 months

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. The company has
prepaid the entire loan in February 2024

{iv) An unsecured loan of Rs NIL (as at March 31, 2023:10189.11 lacs) from GMR Power and Urban Infra Ltd. shall be repayable within 3 yrs from
date of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.25% p.a. The company has paid the entire loan in during FY 2024

(v) An unsecured loan of Rs 33015.43 lacs (as at March 31, 2023; 30863.00 Jacs) from GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited shall be repayable within
6 yrs from date of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 7.25% p.a.




Rupees In Lacs

57 Teida Ravibl As At As At
AT March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Trade Payables
A | ODue to micro small and medium enterprise 2,136.53 2,677.51
i her th i Il an i
. Due to ..”_én_:oa other than micro small and medium 2,615.62 3,598.00
enterprise
4,752.15 6,275.60
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024 Rupees in Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
: More than 3
Amt Not Due | Less than1year | 1-2years | 2-3 years years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 1,012.12 424.28 262.15 437.98 | 2,136.53
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 232.50 486.97 40.57 1,855.58 | 2,615.62
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - . -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
- 1,244.62 911.25 302.72 2,293.56 | 4,752.15
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3
Amt NotDue | Lessthanlyear| 1-2years | 2-3 years years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 1,692.01 303.55 481.65 20029 | 2,677.51
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 1,316.45 105.00 1,432.88 743.76 | 3,598.09
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
- 3,008.46 408.55 1,914.54 94405 | 6,275.60
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Rupees In Lacs
| As At As At
1%/ Shorttum i March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Secured
(a) Current Maturities of long term debt - 17,960.52
Unsecured
{a) Short term Loan from related parties 21,879.16 12,199.92
21,879.16 30,160.44

(i) An unsecured loan of Rs

5590.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 5590.00 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within
12 months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an Interest rate of 11% p.a.

(ii) An unsecured loan of Rs. 6219.92 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 6219.92 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within
12 months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 10% p.a.

(iti) An unsecured loan of Rs. 290.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs 290.00 lacs) from Raxa Security Service Ltd. shall be repayable within 12 months
from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.50% p.a.

{iv) Unsecured Short Term loan of Rs.100.00 lacs ( March 31, 2023 - Rs.100.00 lacs ) from Raxa Security Services Limited Carries an
interest rate of 10%.

(v) An unsecured loan of Rs. 9679.24 lacs {as at March 31, 2023: NIL) from GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Ltd. shall be repayable within 12
months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.00% p.a.

Rupees in Lacs
5 As At As At
29 Otiar sl 1isiiny March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
(i) Non Current
{a) Financial guarantee contracts 9.96 14.57
(b) Interest accrued on borrowings (NCDs) 990.71 -
(c) Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans 2,508.70 2161
3,509.37 36.18
(i) Current
(a) Interest Accrued Others - -
(b} Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans and deposi 7,127.59 6,245.43
(c) Financial guarantee contracts 4.61 5.75
(d) Non trade payables 125.23 177.19
7,257.43 6,428.37

c:\45, Palace Road, w_w
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Rupees in Lacs

f financial liablities cat i gl AsAs
Breakup of financial liablities category wise March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Secured Loan from Banks - 73,581.87
Loans from related parties 54,894.59 53,252.03
Long term Secured NCDs 70,000.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10,627.00 6,267.04
Financial guarantee contracts 14.57 20.33
Trade Payables 4,752.15 6,275.60

Non trade payables 125.23 177.19
140,413.53 139,574.05
§iq As At As At
20 Provisions March31,2024| March 31, 2023
(i) Non Current
(i) Current
(a) Provision for Leave benefits 9.60 7.31
(b) Provision for Other Employee Benefit - &
(c) Other Provision 894.37 1,596.22
903.97 1,603.53
R As At As At
21 Current tax liabilities March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Provision for taxation (net) - -
Rupees in Lacs
A As At As At
21 li ti
Other current Ralsiities March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Advances from customers & others 5,535.66 5,688.41
TDS Payable 246.42 144.41
Other Statutory dues 118 4.56
5,783.27 5,837.38

€2\45, Palace Roag,
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22 Revenue from operations
(a) Operation and maintenance 8,968.92 11,451.89
(b) Highway Maintenance Fees - 42.00
8,968.92 11,493.89
23 Other income
(a) Interest Income on Bank Deposit and Others 593.78 109.56
(b) Management Fee - 13.27
(c) Interest Income of Financial Assets 7,158.19 7,905.93
(d) Interest Income on Inter Corporate Loans 1,155.68 3,711.02
(e) Profit on sale of Mutual Fund 0.47 0.26
(f) Provisions/Liability no longer required written back 207.01 168.34
(g) Gain on disposal of assets (net) - 50.16
(h) Other non-operating income 535 7.10
9,120.88 11,965.66

v\ Bangalore-1




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
Year ended Year ended
24 Operating expenses March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Sub contracting expenses 1,630.35 1,758.16
(b) Operation & maintenance expenses 7,325.63 7,341.52
8,955.98 11,099.68
Year ended Year ended
25 Employee benefit expense March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Salaries, Perguisites & Allowance 70.07 56.71
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 4.67 4.13
(c) Gratuity expense P ;
(d) Staff welfare expenses 0.20 0.65
74.94 61.49
Year ended Year ended
26 Finance costs March 31,2024)  March 31, 2023
{3) Interest on debts and borrowings 10,322.47 12,521.69
{b) Interest on intercompany debt and borrowings 4,817.64 1,745.48
(c) Interest Others 5.53 446
(d) Other borrowing cost 1,963.54 1,010.75
17,109.18 15,282.38
Year ended Year ended
27 Depreciation and amortisation expense March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2.43 2.69
2.43 2.69
Rupees in Lacs
Year ended Year ended
28 Other expenses March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rent 5.36 5.08
Rates and taxes 402 0.81
Logo Fees 0.01 0.01
Insurance 0.14 037
Fixed assets writeoff 0.00 0.00
Repairs and maintenance Others 219 4.40
Travelling and conveyance 134 3.37
Communication costs 0.14 0.13
Securtiy Expenses 2.50 2.50
Printing and stationery 0.03 0.08
Membership 2.25 6.00
Lega! and professional fees 11450 113.07
Directors’ sitting fees 4.40 5.75
Advertising and business promotion 831 4.00
Kecruitment expenses - 0.02
Weeting and seminar 0.06 0.54
| Bank charges 7.08 0.40
Remuneration 1o auditor 11.30 4.00
Charities and Donations - 10.00
Miscellaneous expenses 30.62 13.01
194.25 173.51
Payment Lo audilor
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rupees in Lacs Rupees in Lacs
As auditor.
Audit fee 7.00 250
Tax audit fee 0.7% 0.50
Other services (certification fees) 3.55 100
.q.WnU— i \ 11.30 4.00
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GMR Highways Limited
ON: U45203MHI006PLC2E7171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

29 Eaming/ (Loss) Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Com)

pany (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares / CCDs) by
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus

the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on cenversion of all the dilutive
potential Equity shares into Equity shares,
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (Rs In Lacs) (8,246.98) {12,992.13)
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (Rs in Lacs) (8,236.98) (12,992.13)
Profit attributable to equity holders for diluted earnings (Rs in Lacs) (8,246.98) {12,992.13)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for computing Earning Per Share (Basic) 843,334,710 843,334,710
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 843,334,710 843,334,710
Earning Per Share {Basic) (Rs) {0.98) {1.54)
Earning Per Share (Diluted) (Rs} (0.98) (1.549)
Face value per share (Rs) 10 10

30 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of conti
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affec

31 Capital Commitments
Capital commitments : Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil ( March 2023: Rs, NIL).
32 Contingent Liabilities

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
ngent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
ted in future periods.

Rupees in Lacs
(i} |Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee in favor of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for the benefit of 5,550.00 5,550.00
GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Pvt Ltd { Borrower )

(i) A Show Cause notice has been issued by Commissioner of Customn {DRI

Matters) to its earlier subsidiary GOHHPL whereby a penalty of Rs 15.91 lacs has been imposed by the
authority, against which company has filed appeal

before CESTAT after depositing 7.5% of penalty amount i.e. Rs 1,19 lacs, which is pending as on date for adjudication.
Litigation:

Company is having a litigation matter which mainly came on-account of merger of TT and TA in accordance of N
Concession Agreement, there was change/increase in the Minimum Alternative Tax rates and Service Tax rates
¥1B.43 crores under Change in Law 35 per Article 11 of the Concession Agreement dated 09.10.2001.

The Hon'ble Tribunal vide order dated 24th Feb’2018 had upheld the claims of the Cam,
the date of the award (total amount %21,27,
till the date of actual payment.

Since NHAI did not pay the decretal amount by the time allowed by the Arbitral Tribunal, the Company had filed an execution petition u/s 36 of Arbitration Act, 18996, before Hon'ble
Delhi High Court for recovery of the awarded amount. NHAI had alse challe

...nnuc.nhs_ua_u___.m___._n-nu_xu:o.._E..awao___"___ob&_.aco:bnﬂHmmm..?n:n:.ﬁunc_cnfn clubbed the
Execution Petition of the Company with the plication filed by NHAI as the parties and subject of both the cases were similar.

In compliance of the directions of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, NHAI had deposited an amount of 21.44 cr. on 17.08.2018 with the Registrar of the Court. On applications of the

Company, Delhi High Court vide order dated 20.07.2022 has released the amount deposited by NHAI and further vide order dated 28.09.2022 has allowed the application of the
Company for release of balance amount lying with the court.

Company has received amount of Rs 25.29 lacs {aleng with interest) on 23.08.2022,

Delhi High Court vide order dated 15.09.2022 in an application filed by GMR Highways Ltd. has allowed the substitution of GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited with GMR
Highways Ltd. GMR has filed an application seeking deposit of the deficit amount deposited by NHA!, Matter is now listed on 23.07.2024

» ¥

CLT order dated 3rd August, 2022. In TT, subsequent to signing of
and the Fringe Benefit Tax was intraduced, thereby leading to claims of

pany and has awarded 214,51,57,902 plus interest of %6,75,61,842/- at SBI PLR plus 3% upto
19,744/-). NHAI was given time till 7th April, 2018 to pay the total amount failing which interest @ 7% p.a. will be payable from 25.02.2018

B The Additional Director, Director General of GST Intelligence (“DGGI") had issued a Show Cause Natice No.116/2022-23 dated 30.01.2023 to GMR Highways Limited [GMR Tuni-

2&5&-:.?!3.«5«5?3_:Q:_Fnon_..oiu.uo why CGST and TGST amounting to Rs.17,68,86,000/- should not be demanded and recovered from GMR Highways Limited u/s
73(1) of Central GST Act,2017 and Section 73(1) of the Andhra Pradesh GST >ﬂ.~anw.

Aggrieved by aforesaid SCN, GMR Highways had filed Writ of Certiorari before High court of Andhra Pradesh, On 16.03,2023, Court directed the
Jobjections to the impugned show cause notice dated 30.01,2023 and the respondent authorities were directed not to take any coercive action purs
notice till next date of hearing. The matter is currently pending and next date of hearing is yet to be fixed.

pany to submit its explanati
uant to the said show cause

5 Nz
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Stat

ts for the Year ended M

h 31, 2024

34 The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contract for which there were -3__. material foreseeable losses.

35 Investment Pledge detail

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Shares Held | Shares Pledged Total Shares Held Shares Pledged
f rof In favour of
{In No.] (inhay [ioveu (1n Ne.) (1nNo.}
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 1 306,000 IDBI Trusteeship 2.450,000 300,000 1DBI Trusteeship
|Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up} S i L Services Ltd AS0; 1,300, Services Ltd
GMR Chennal Outer Ring Road Private Limited (Equity |0BI Trusteeship IDBI Trusteeship
14,700,000 ,512,500 14,700,000 5,512 :

shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up) 3 Services Ltd 212500 Services Ltd
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 713 IDBI Trusteeship 27 IDBI Trusteeship
(Preference shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up) 21,900/000 7,735, Services Ltd 21,600,000 »735,713 Services Ltd
GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited ( 1DBI Trusteeship 1DBI Trusteeship
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid up) 30,742,720 50,742,720 Services Ltd 2O RTI0 HRIN Services Ltd
The above shares have been pledged as per the condition provided in the Rupee Term Loan Agreement.
* Company has pledged Equity shares held by it in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expr ys Pvt. Ltd,, in favor of IDBI Trusteeship Sevices Ltd for securing the term loan of Rs, 282 Crores
availed by GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Pvt. Ltd. its subsidiary company. Company has created the charge through Dead of Hypothecation dated October 05 2015 and the
charge is registered with Registrar of Companies Mumbai vid arge Certificate No. 10610945,

36 The Company has made an investment of Rs. 40775.71 lacs (March 31 2023: Rs. 27407.31 lacs) [including loans of Rs.NIL (March 31 2023: Rs. 7753.00 lacs) share application money

pending allotment of Rs. NIL (March 31 2023: NIL) and investment in equity / preference shares/CCDs of Rs. 40775.71 lacs [March 31 2023: Rs. 19654.31 Lacs) in GMR Ambala
Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (‘GACEPL') a Subsidiary of the Company. GACEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of commercial operations. The
management believes that these losses are due to loss of revenue arising as a result of divesrion of partial traffic on prallel roads. The matter is currently under arbitration however

based on management's internal assessment and a legal opinion the management of GACEPL is confident that it will be able to claim compensation from relevant authorities for the
loss it has suffered due to such diverion of traffic and accordingly the Investment in GACEPL has been carried at cost.

The three member Hon'ble Trbunal vide its order dated 26th August, 2020, has pronounced the awards wherein majority of the Tribunal has disagreed with the contention of the

company 2nd has rejected all the claim of the company whereas the minority Tribunal has upheld the claims of the company.

Subsequently, NHAI vide letter dated 03.09.2020 has asked the Company to deposit the amount along with the interest. NHAI has also written to Central Bank of India, Escrow Bank

to remit the amountAggrieved by rejection of all of its claims, GMR had filed two applications each in both Punjab and Haryana matters before Delhi High Court — ane u/fs 34 of

Arbitration Act, 1995, seeking setting aside of the award of Arbitral Tribunal and another application u/s 9 of Arbitration Act, 1996, seeking stay on the letters of NHAl demanding
of the ir of Negative Grant along with interest. GMR had also filed an application under section 36 of Arbitration Act, 1996, for stay of aperation of the Award till

the time its challenge /s 34 is decided. .

The Court vide its order dated 24.09.2020 had admitted the challenge to Award and issued notice In section 34 application but the other two applications filed u/s 9 and 36 were

rejected.

Delhi High Court vide order dated 26.09.2022, has set aside the award dated 26.08.2020 and the entire dispute is to be referred to arbitration once again for which parties are at

liberty to re-initiate arbitral proceedings as per the contractual covenants. All Issues of fact and law would remain open to be agitated by GMR , NHAI and States of Haryana and
Punjab in the de-novo arbitral proceedings,

Pey

_aiiihc&naigguﬁgnu:;m:znncuzz_p_i—squ!wiuurux_;u:s_.:o%«u!mi_-uu:e R_nﬁnnmbuucnr._suvuno_Eﬁn.uoﬂwc:mwmrnsm.ﬁ Company became
infructuous and was withdrawn on 28.08.2023,

The Division Bench of Delhi High Court vide judgement dated 20.09.2023 dismissed the appeals filed by NHAI and GoHR against the judgment dated 26.09.2022 passed by the learned
Single Judge. On 01.04.202¢, the Division Bench of Delhi High Court dismissed the appea| filed by State of Punjab against the judgment dated 26.09.2022 passed by tha learned Single
Judge.

Fegerieved by dismissal of its appeal u/s 37 of Arbitration and Concillation Act, 1996, NHA| has filed two SLPs in Supreme Court. GoHR has also filed SLP challenging dismissal of its
appeal u/s 37. The matters are now tentatively listed in the week commencing 02.09.2024,

The Company has made an investment of Rs. 65037,00 lacs {March 31 2023: Rs. 65037.00 lacs) [including loans of Rs.43192.00 lacs {March 31 2023: Rs. 43192.00 lacs) share
2pplication money pending allotment of Rs. NIL {(March 31 2023: NIL) and investment In equity / preference shares of Rs. 21845.00 lacs (March 31 2023: Rs. 21845.00 lacs) in GMR
Hyderabad Vijayawada Expr vs Private Limited ('GHVEPL') a subsidiary of the Company. GHVEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of commercial operations.
These losses are primarily due to loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commerclal traffic due to bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban on sand mining in the region.
These events constitutes a Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and same has been agreed by NHAI and has also agreed to pay compensation, however there was no
agreement on the quantification of the claim amount. GHVEPL has invaked Arbitration and has filed a claim of Rs, 167600.00 lacs (Based on values upto March 31, 2020) before the
Tribunal. Tribunal vide its order dated March 31, 2020 has pronounced the award unanimously, uphelding GHVEPL's contention that bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban
©on sand mining in the region constitutes Change in Law event and GHVEPL is entitled for compansation for the loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial vehicles.
However, on the guantum of the claim ameunt, majerity of the Tribunal members has directed NHAI to constitute a committee for determining the claim amount based on data /
record avallable with GHVEPL and NHAI,

Company had filed two applications u/s 34 (challenge to Award to limited ground that NHAI cannot be judge of its own cause] and u/s 9 of the Arbitration Act [seeking stay on
recovery of Negative Grant till claims are gquantified]. NHAI also filed its challenge u/s 34 of the Arbitration Act to the arbitration award.

Aggrieved by the order dated 04.08.2020 passed by the Single Judge dismissing the challenge of NHAI to the Award, NHAI has filed an appeal u/s 37 of AA, 1996, before Division Bench

of Delhi High Court challenging the said order, The same was listed on 07.09.2020 when the Court refused to interfere with the order passed by Single Judge and directed that the
proceedings before Mr. Justice D.K. Jain will continue subject to outcome of the present appeal.

On 05.01.2024, arguments by both the parties were concluded. The matters are reserved for judgement.




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

On May 8, 2020, GHVEPL has received a notice from NHAI restricting the concession period to 15 years pursuant to clause 3.2.2. of the Concession Agreement by stating that NHAI is
satisfied that 6-laning of the project is not required. GHVEPL has sought material on tecord from NHAI and has further obtained legal opinion.

Aggrieved by the action of NHAL, the Company has invoked arbitration under Dispute Resolution mechanlism prescribed under the Concession Agreement,

Arbitral Tribunal has been reconstituted comprising of Mr. Justice J. Chelameswar (Retd.) (as Presiding) (earliar Ms. Justice R, Banumathi), Justice Mr. Dilip B. Bhosale {nominee of
GMR) and Mr. Samirendra Chatterjee, 1AS (Retd) {nominee of NHAI},

GHVEPL has filed an application u/s 17 of the Arbitration Act, 1996 before Tribunal for stay of operation of NHAI's letter dated 08.05.2620 till conclusion of arbitration proceedings.
By order dated 07.11,2022, the AT has allowed the application and directed stay on operation of letter dated 0B.05.2020 till the final Award.

Counsel for both the parties concluded their submissions on 14.04,2024, The matter Is now reserved for pronouncement of award.,

38 leases

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements for office pramises.
The lease rentaks paid during the period and the maximum obligation on the long term cancellable

perating lease payable are as follows:
Rupees in Lacs
|Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease rentals under cancellable and non-cancellable leases

5.36 5.08

39 Based on information available with the Company, suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprises under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 20067 as at March 31, 2024 has been classified under note no. 17A.
Provision for Rs 0.14 lacs created in books on account of interest accrued and remaining unclaimed,

40 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

Valuation of Employee Benefit has been done for the period ended March 31 2024 as per INDAS 19 - Employee Benefits issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(=) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions paid / payable to defined contribution plans comprising of provident fund

, pension fund, superannuation fund etc., in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations are recognised as expenses during the year when the tontributions to the respective funds are due.

Rupees in Lacs
; " Year ended Year ended
_March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution to provident fund 3.19 265
Contribution to superannuation fund 0.29
319 294
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31,2024

(b) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has defined benefit plan, namely gratuity. As per scheme, an employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity equivalents to 15 days salary (last

drawn salary) for each completed year of service,

The following table summarises the components of net expense recognised in the income statement and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity,

Net Benefit Expenses

Components of defined benefit costs recognised In profit or loss
Current service cost

Past Service Cost - plan amendments
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / loss due to DBO experience
Actuarial (gains) / lass due to DBO assumption changes
Return on Plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate
Total

Benefit Asset/ (Liability)
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Benefit Asset/ (Liability)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost

Past Service Cost - plan amendments

Benefits Paid

Net actuarial(gain)/loss recognised in year

Acquisition adjustment

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets
Acquisition adjustment

Interest Income on Plan Assets
Comtributions by employer
Expected return

Eenefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

am.vmﬂmnwnoma.
Bangalore-1 /1~

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rupees in Lacs Rupees in Lacs
0.956 0.86
(9.40) (7.19)
(8.43) (6.33)
109 0.25
0.19 {0.09)
- 205
128 2
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(7.18) {4.61)
148.77 139.04
“_.Em 134.43
4.61 3128
0.24 0.24
0.96 0.86
1.28 0.16
- (27.92)
7.18 4.61
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
139.04 119.08
= 14.58
9.73 7.42
- {2.08)
148.77 135.04
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The maior categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Discount rate 7.00% 7.30%
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality table used Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)
ult. Ult.
Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 5.00%
The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in
.rao:.locﬂo:ﬁ:ﬂ..rnn

nos.ﬂﬁcng«xuantns_xaan.3»:.9323nﬁ=d¢83§ﬁuuw?‘z__.._uqﬂ..uﬁ year Rs.NIL)
Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratuity scheme Is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal,

The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the
financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase
Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation
Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these

decrements on the defined benefit obligation Is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria, It is impaortant not to
overstate withdrawals because In the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Significant actuarlal assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on r bly possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Sensitivity Analysis Rupees in Lacs
March 31, 2024
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% +1% -1% +1% -1%
Amount in INR
Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.60) 0.68 0.68 (0.61) 0.04 (0.05)
March 31, 2023
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% +1% -1% +1% 1%
A tin INR
Impact on defined benefit obligation {0.41) 0.46 0.46 (0.41) 0.02 {0.03)
Maturity Plan of defined benefit obligation: Rug inlacs
Within 1 year 0.43
1-2 year 0.44
2-3 year 044
3-4 year 0.45
4-5 year 045
5-10 year 232

in
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

41 List of Related parties and Transactions / Outstanding Balances:
a) Name of Related Parties and description of relationship:
Enterprises that control the Company / excercie|GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL)
significant influence GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd. (GEPL) (the Parent Company)
Subsidiary Companies of the reporting enterprise GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd (GPEL)
GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACE)
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL)
GMR Chennai Quter Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL)
Fellow Subsidiaries / Associates GMR Airpart Developers Limited (GADL)
GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited (GIL) (formerly known as GMR Infrastructure
Limited)
GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)
GMR Generation Assets Limited { GGAL)[ formerly known as GMR Renewable
Energy Limited (GREL)]
GMR Airports Limited (GAL)
Corporate Infrasructure Service Pvt Ltd (CISPL)
GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited (GKSIR)
GMR SEZ AND PORT HOLDING LIMITED (GSPHL)
Namitha Real Estate Private Limited (NREPL)
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Ltd {GHIAL)
Delhi Internation Airport Limited
Raxa Security Services Ltd
Dhruvi Securities Ltd.(D5L)
Key Management Personnel Mr. BV N Rao, Director
Mr. O.Bangaru Raju Managing Directar
Mr. Madhva B. Terdal , Director
Mr. K. P Rao, Independent Director (till 07 Sep.2022)
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy
Mrs. Sridevi Venisheety, Woman Director
Mr S. Rajagopal, Independent Director
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

b) Summary of transactions with above related parties are as foll Rupees in Lacs
Name of Entity Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Transaction with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise significant Influence
GPUIL Interest Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken 585.29 418,07
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPUIL 11,551.51 4,605.10
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GPUIL 1,362.40 14,794.21
Managements Support Services-Expense 63.68 54.31
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work (28.02) -
Work Contract Services Provided to GPUIL - 1,401.00
Short Term Loan Given to GPUIL {Corporate) 14,689.25 1,872.00
Short Term Loan Refund by GPUIL (Corporate) 708.50 12,902.13
Short Term Loan Given to GPUIL {EPC) 1,315.00 414.74
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL EPC) 233,00 132.25
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL Corp) 248.17 433.34
GEPL Logo Fees and Trade Mark 0.01 0.01
Transaction with Subsidiaries Rupees in Lacs
GACEPL Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income 163.08 237.36
Charges for Major Maintenance Work- Income 1517.62 137744
Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment - 125.14
Interest income on Long Term Loan Given (GTT / GTA) 557.59 556.07
Financial Assets portion of Loan converted inte CCDs 7,753.00 -
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work {0.04) {1.10)
Investment in CCDs issued by GACEPL 21,121.40 -
Interest income on Investment in CCDs 0.24
Interest Income on finanical asset part of Loan given 566.89 580.34

Hight Plint IV
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PR Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income 36952 T
Charges for Major Maintenance Work- Income 1.847.82 1035.35
Charges for COS Work- Income 1,630.42 2606.49
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work 198.86 (84.88)
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPEL 70.00 34146
Unsecured Loan taken from GPEL 70.00 150.00
Interest on Unsecured Loan Taken 124151 1,257.15
GCORRPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment 519.31 467.84
Interest on Unsecured Loan Given - 367.45
Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work - Income 485.58 292.55
Charges for Major Maint e Work - | 102.61 -
Charges for COS Work - Income - 124.30
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Wark {281.26) 12251
|income for Financial Guzrantee given 5.75 7.00
Short Term Loan Taken 9,679.24 -
Interest on Unsecured Loan Taken 454.87
Sub Debts Given to CORR - 1,216.73
Sub Debts Refund by CORR - 4,452.09
GHVEPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment 1,985.89 1,789.07
Interest income on Loan given 3,776.13 3,401.88
Charges for Repair & Maintenance - Income 616.33 591.39
Charges for Major Maintennace Work - Income 213375 347247
Charges for COS Work - Income 2.18 420
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work (42.68) (88.31)
|Short Term Loan Refunded by GHVEPL 1,200.00 -
Transaction with Fellow Subsidiaries / Associates/loint Ventures Rupees in Lacs
GIL Unsecured Long Term Loan refunded to GIL 9,919.00 -
Interest Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken 2,489.46 2401
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GIL 12,071.43 30,863.00
GIL - SIL )V Unsecured Short Term Loan Given 1,690.00 300.00
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GIL SIL 85.00 487.00
Interest Income on Loan given 54.16 37.94
CISPL Unsecured Loan Given to CISPL 10,000.00 -
Unsecured Loan Refunded by CI5PL 10,000.00 :
Interest Income on Loan given 37.67 -
Mamitha Real Estate Unsecured Loan Given - 72.89
Interest Income on Loan given 21.24 21.06
GKSIR Unsecured Loan Given to KSIR - -
Interest income on Financial asset (GTT) - 1,262.79
Unsecured Loan Refunded by KSIR . 100.00
investment in CCDs of GKSIR (loan converted) . 23,460.00
|interest Income on CCDs 235 0.10
Interest Income on Loan given - 1.25:-::
GSPHL Unsecured Loan Given - ﬁs.m
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GSPHL = . m.m
|investment in CCDs of GSPHL (loan converted) 1-25 2, o.
Interest income on CCDs _ ?33:“
Interest Income on Loan given - 55
GHIAL PMC fee for Impl ion of Fare Collection Systm - Income P 5T
DIAL Support services for vehicle running [Diesel service) .' . :
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecured Loan Taken 5o il
Security Service Charges P pop
Interest Expenses on Loan Taken 2 >
PRAKALPA PROPERTIES PRIVATE  |Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued Q:O; j
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCOs v -
PADMAPRIYA PROPERTIES PRIVATE | Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued g 1
LIMITED Interest E on CCOs e -
NADIRA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued s 1
LIMITED Interest Exp on CCDs e
IDIKA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued o ]
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCDs 41100 .
EILA PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED |Compulsery Convertible Debentures Issued e g
Interest Exp on CCDs 300,00 .
DEEPESH PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsery Convertible Debentures Issued o T
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCOs o =
ASTERIA REAL ESTATES PRIVATE | Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued 0.00 4
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCDs 10500 "]
AMARTYA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued s
Interest Expenses an CCDs e
AKLIMA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures |ssued g ;
Interest Exp on CCDs =
Enterprise where Key Management Personnel and their relative exercls significant | ca 530] T 08
G. Varalakshmi Vizag Guest House Rental charges a 54.21J
GFFT Refund of Deposit by GFFT
*R of arenotc d In the above statement.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Transaction with Key Management Personnel Rupees in Lacs
Details of Key Managerial Remuneration Outstanding
Personnel Short-term Post employment | Other long-term Termination Sitting Fee Others loans/advances
employee benefits benefits employee benefits recelvables
benefits
Mr, K. Parameswara Rao - - - - o - F
(1.00)|
Ms. SRIDEVI VENISHEETY - - - - 0.90] » -
Mr. S. Rajagopal - - - - L.75 . .
{2.05)
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy - - - - 1.75
- - - - {1.05) - -
Note: Values mentioned in bracket pertains to previous year
Rupees in Lacs
Name of Entity Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Closing Balances with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise significant influence
GPUIL Equity portion of Sub Debt 23,865.48 23,865.43
Equity portion of Preference Shares 22,583.58 22,583.58
Unsecured Long Term Loan Taken . 10,180.11
Interest Payable on Unsecured Loan - 417.86
Trade and Other Payables 281 43,66
Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 2559 23.20
Trade Receivable 456.59 -
Advance received on account of Work Contract Services “ 28.02
Unbilled Revenue for of Work Contract Services 858.96 1,401.00
Short Term Loan Given (GPUIL EPC) 2,834.65 1519.65
Short Term Loan Given {GPUIL Corporate) 13,980.75 -
Interest Receivable (GPUIL EPC) 226.40 343.90
Interest Recelvable (GPUIL Corporate) 223.36 -
Retention Money Payable 16.25 16.25)
GEPL Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 0.01 0.01
Closing Balances with Subsidiarles
GACEPL Investment In Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 5,074.27 £,074.27
|Equity Portion of Investment in Preferenec Shares 24,553.07 24,553.07
Interest Receivable on Long term loan given 3,916.67 3,582.41
Long term loan given 6,163.38 6,163.38
Financials Assets portion of Loan Given - 5.013.001
Investment in CCDs 21,121.40
Interest recelvable on CCDs - Long Term 0.22
Equity portion of Loan Given 446851 5,641.62
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work 0.02 0.04
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 22.67 51.19|
Trade and Other Receivables 87.41 10,156.02
CORR Investment in Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 1,470.00| 1,470.00
Equity Portion of Sub Debts Given 547.57 547.57
Short Term Loan Taken 9,679.24 -
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 5,366.68 4,847.37
Equity portion of Preference Shares Investment 6,011.67 6,011.67
Investment as Financial Guarantee given 79.39 79.39
Interest Payable 343.22 -
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work 1,469.79 1,751.06
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related B3.84 142,15
Trade and Other Receivables . 14.22
GHVEPL Financials Assets portion of Loan Given 39,023.33 35,247.20
Financial Assets of short term loan given 7,599.00 8,799.00
rEunv portion of Loan Given 29,255.49 29,255.49
Investment in Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 245.00 245.00
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 189.60 547.11
Trade and Other Receivables 412.19 814.23
Retention Money Receivable 51.12 51.12
Equity Portion of Investment In Preferenec Shares 16,349.31 16,349.31
Advance received on 1t of Routine Maint Fee / MMR Work 25.16 67.66
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 20,522.63 18,536.74
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L I Imvestment m Equity shars capital - [Other than trade) 13,583.00 13,593.00
Equity portion of Security Deposit Received 1158 1158
Unsecred Loan Taken 11.809.92 11,809.92
Interest payable on Unsecured Loan 6,388.10 5476.74
Mvmwmamdmm&e!mm 1,511.19 1,312.12
Unbilled Revenue for D&M /COS/MMA/T related 361.52 48408
[ Trade and Other Recenables - 124498
Closing Balances with Fellow Subsidiaries/ Assodiates/Joint Ventures
GiL lrm«m Actrued on Unsecured Loan (Long Term) 2,508.58 21.61
Unsecured Long Term Loan Takan 33,015.43 30,863.00
Dhrunn Equity portion of Preference Shares 187247 1,972.47
GHIAL Trade and Other Payzbles = 10.66]
GMPR Energy Limited Eguity Portion of Subordinate Debs 2.676.88 2,676.86)
|Namitha Real Estate |Interest recenmatble 41.23 20.01
Financials Azzets portion of Loan Given 172.89 172.89
GMR Sez and Port Holding Irrsestment in CCOs 12,600.00 12,600.00
Interest recerrable on CCDs -Long Term 118 0.05
DIAL Trade and Other Payabies 113.58 112.81
GGAL Interest Payable 2219.14 229.14
|Krishnagiri SIR Ltd Irrvestment in CCDs 23480.00 23,460.00
Interest recervable on CCDs - Long Term a2 0.09
Equity Component of Loan Gren 1,892.57 1,892.57
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecred Loan Taken 390.00 390.00
1Inhru| payatle on Ursecured Loan 167.13 121;.
Trade and Other Payables (Provisien) 245 2.90
GIL-SIL IV Interest recenatie 122.50 69.49
Short Term Loan Ghven 1,718.00 50.00
Long Term Loan Gaven D 63.00
PRAKALPA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert ble Detest ey bxsed 466.00 -
LIMITED Interest Payable on CLD 0.02 .
PADMAPRIYA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Comvert Lie Debertures tisues 350.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on LDy 0.02 -
NADIRA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert Lie Detest urei Iiwed 291.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDy 0.01 o
IDIKA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert die Detwrtures trnwed $71.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDy 0.03 .
EILA PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED |Compulsory Convertitie Debentres tazoes 411.00 -
Interest Payable on CCDy 0.02 -
DEEPESH PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertibie Debentures lisued 300.00 il
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDs 0.01 .
ASTERIA REAL ESTATES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertibie Debentures lisued 12.00 P
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 -
AMARTYA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued 105.00 .
Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 .
AKLIMA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued €4.00 -
Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 *
Grandhi Varalakshmi Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 1.25 0

Commitments with related parties:

As at pericd ended March 31, 2024, there is no commitment cutstanding with any of the related parties

Money ble from related parties does not arise. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market
in which the related party operates.




R Highways Limited
{: U45203MH2006PLC287171

tes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

2 Capital Management

For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share, loan from related parties and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes within net debt,
external borrowings.

Rupees in Lacs

Particulars At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Borrowings- External 70,990.71 73,581.87
Borrowings- Related party 64,530,87 59,519.06
Net debts 135,521.59 133,100.93
Capital Components

Share Capital 84,333.47 84,333.47
Instruments entirely equity in nature 2,576.00 -
Other Equity 40,188.67 48,436.94
Total Capital 127,098.14 132,770.41
Capital and net debt 262,619.73 265,871.33
Gearing ratio (%) 51.60% 50.06%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing

loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current peried.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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43 Financial Instrument by Category

Rupees in Lacs es in Lacs
Particulars At March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 3
At Amortised Cost At FVTPL At Amortised Cost At FVTPL

— Cost | Fair Value Cost | Fair Value
Investment in Unquoted CCDs 57,181.40 - - 36,060.00 - -
Equity portion of compound financial instruments 46,914.05 - - 46,914.05 - -
Investment in related party loans 36,164.15 - - 37,337.25 - -
Investment in financial guarantees 79.39 - - 79.39 - -
Investment in preference shares issued to related parties 25,889.31 - - 23,384.11 - -
Loans to Related parties 76,233.94 - - 62,460.12 - -
Cash & Cash Equivalent 60.75 - - 30,135.50 - -
Trade Receivables 920.03 - . 2,126.88 - -
Other Financial Assets 7,327.01 - - 17,870.22 - -
Total 250,770.03 - - 256,367.53 - - |
Liabilities

Loans from related parties 54,894.59 - - 53,252.03 - -
Borrowing from external parties 70,000.00 - - 73,581.87 - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10,627.00 - - 6,267.04 - -
Financial guarantee contracts 1457 - - 20.33 - -
Trade Payables 4,752.15 - . 6,275.60 - -
Non trade payables 125.23 177.19

Total 140,413.53 - - 139,574.05 - |

44 Exceptional Items
Break-up of Exceptional Item Is as under:

Rupees in Lacs

Particulars At March 31, 2024 As at ::];r;h a1,
Gain / (Loss) on Receivables of CCDs 2 (10,033.67)
Total S [10‘08]:6?]

45 Fair values
The carrying amount of all financlal assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the financlal statements Is reasonable approximation of fair
values.,

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other fi ial assets, bo ings, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financlal assets and liabllities is Included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2= Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (L.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {uncobservable inputs),

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2024:
Fair Value at end of the reporting
Particulars At March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets - - . v

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023:
Falr Value measurement at end of the reporting
Particulars As at March 31, Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2023
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45 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The
Company's principal financial assets is cash and cash equivalents, Investment and other bank balance.

The Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of these risks, The Company’s senior management
is supported by 2 financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides e to the c y's senior management that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are

identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and commedity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and Investment measured at FVTPL .

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions. The analysis for the
contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 40.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This Is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate rick is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in ket interest rates. The C ¥'s exg to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s policy is to manage its interest cost using only interest free/ fixed rate debts from related parties.

The following table demonstrates the itivity to a r bly possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge

accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decrease Effect on profit
in basis points before tax

March 31, 2024 Rupees in Lacs
INR +50 (525.05)
INR -50 525.05
March 31, 2023
INR +50 (481.96)
INR -50 481.96
Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. With respect to credit risk arising
from other financial assets of the Company's, which comprise Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances and investment, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instrument.

The Carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 271207.84 lacs and Rs. 276805.33 lacs as at March 31,2024
and March 31,2023 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivable, balance with bank, bank depesits, investments and other financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a ble price. The Company's t y department is

responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management
monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash flows,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Rupees in Lacs
On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Years Total
Year ended
M“bnrmd‘ 3lnl;?nhrt.n.gm h Secured NCDs - 990.71 - - 70,000.00 - 70,990.71
Loan from Related parties - 29,006.75 = 35,52413 64,530.87
Trade payables 4,752.15 4,752.15
Other financial liabilities 125.23 125.23

h 34,874 B3 = - 105,524.13 - 140,398.96




Notes forming part of Financial Stat

for the Year ended March 31, 2024

On Demand %
et man Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3-5 years More than 5 Years Total
March 31, 2023
Term Loan from Bank - 18,884.18 2B,326.26 28,326.26 . 75,536.71
Loan from Related parties 18,445.35 10,189.11 30,824 61 59 '19 \
Trade payables 6,275.60 gy
Other financial liabilities 177.19 g
.19

. 43,782.32 28,326.26 38,515.38 30,284.61 - 141,508.57

Excessive risk concentration

The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business actlvities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include s
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hed,

pecific guldelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfofio, Identified
industry levels.

Eing [s used within the company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and

47 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company does not cover under section 135 of the companies act 2013.

48 Recent accounting proncuncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

43 Additional disclosure pursuant to schedule i of Companies Act 2013

There is no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1388) and
the rules made thersunder.
The Company does not have any transactions/ balances with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 to the best of knowledge of Company's management.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
(such 25, search or survey or any other relevant provisions) under Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company has not traded or invested funds in Crypto currency of Virtual currency.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entityfies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), Including foreign entities(Funding Party) with the understating (whether recorded in writing cr ctherwise)

The Company has used borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date
The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

The quarterly return/ statement of current assets filed by the Company with bank and financial institutions in relation to secured borrowings wherever applicable are in agreement
with books of accounts.

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(2) repayable on demand or

{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

5. Palace Roag
Bangalore.;
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